

Phil Norrey Chief Executive

To: The Chairman and Members of

the Procedures Committee

County Hall Topsham Road Exeter Devon EX2 4QD

(See below)

Your ref: Date: 5 July 2016

Our ref: Please ask for: Rob Hooper 01392 382300

Email: rob.hooper@devon.gov.uk

PROCEDURES COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 13th July, 2016

A meeting of the Procedures Committee is to be held on the above date at 1.00 pm or on the rising of the Cabinet in the Committee Suite, County Hall, Exeter to consider the following matters.

P NORREY Chief Executive

AGENDA

PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE

- 1 Apologies for absence
- 2 Minutes

Minutes of the meeting held on 18 April 2016, previously circulated.

3 Items Requiring Urgent Attention

Items which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

MATTERS FOR DECISION

4 County Council Meetings: Rules of Debate

County Solicitor to report on proposed amendments to the Council's Rules of Procedure (Standing Orders).

5 <u>Library ByeLaws</u> (Pages 1 - 6)

Joint Report of the Head of Service for Communities and County Solicitor (CS/16/26) on the revision of the Devon Library Byelaws, attached.

MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

None

PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND PUBLIC ON THE GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE DISCLOSED

None

Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain confidential information and should therefore be treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on to any other person(s). Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are therefore invited to return them to the Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO SIGN THE ATTENDANCE REGISTER

Membership

Councillors A Moulding (Chairman), F Biederman, A Connett, T Dempster, J Hart, S Hughes, R Julian, J Owen, R Vint, N Way and R Westlake

Declaration of Interests

Members are reminded that they must declare any interest they may have in any item to be considered at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking place on that item.

Access to Information

Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item on this agenda should contact Rob Hooper on 01392 382300.

Agenda and minutes of the Committee are published on the Council's Website.

Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings

The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting live on the internet via the 'Democracy Centre' on the County Council's website. The whole of the meeting may be broadcast apart from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the press and public. For more information go to: http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/

In addition, anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chairman. Any filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.

Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on proceedings at this meeting. An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall. For information on Wi-Fi availability at other locations, please contact the Officer identified above.

Emergencies

In the event of the fire alarm sounding leave the building immediately by the nearest available exit, following the fire exit signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings, do not use the lifts, do not re-enter the building until told to do so.

Mobile Phones

Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council Chamber

If you need a copy of this Agenda and/or a Report in another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other languages), please contact the Information Centre on 01392 380101 or email to: centre@devon.gov.uk or write to the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat at County Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD.



Induction loop system available

CS/16/26

Procedures Committee 11 July 2016

Public Library Byelaws

Joint Report of Head of Services for Communities and County Solicitor

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendations:

- (i) that the Public Library Service byelaws made by the Council on 4 July 1990 be revoked and:
- (ii) that the revised Public Library Byelaws attached to this report adopted and the Council's intention to confirm them advertised.

1. Summary

This report presents revised byelaws for public libraries under the authority of Devon County Council. The current byelaws were adopted in 1990. They contain clauses which are out of date and inappropriate; they also omit necessary clauses for ensuring appropriate use of library services.

2. Proposal

The Department of Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) have a model set of Public Library Byelaws which have been modified slightly to include an additional clause restricting use of photography.

The proposed byelaws made under Section 19 of the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964, set out in appendix 1, have been approved by the DCMS.

3. Consultation

Notice of intention to apply for confirmation of the byelaws will be advertised in one or more newspapers and state where available for inspection. A copy of the byelaws will be placed for public inspection for at least a month after date of publication of newspaper.

4. Procedure

Devon County Council will apply to the Department for Culture, Media and Sport for confirmation once the byelaws have been placed for inspection for at least one month. The Secretary of State will then approve the byelaws and fix a date on which the new byelaws shall come into force.

4. Financial considerations

Financial implications are not a relevant consideration.

6. Risk management considerations

No risks have been identified.

7. Equality, Environmental Impact and Public Health Considerations.

Equality, environmental impact or public health implications have, where appropriate under the provisions of the relevant legislation, been taken into account.

J SMITH J E SHADBOLT

Electoral Divisions: All

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers:

None

Contact for enquiries: Roland Pyle Room No: G66, County Hall

Appendix 1

Devon County Council Public Library Byelaws

Made under Section 19 of the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964

- 1. In these byelaws, unless the context otherwise requires:
 - a. "the Act" means the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964;
 - b. "charge" means any charge imposed in accordance with the Regulations;
 - c. "child" means a person under the age of [8] years;
 - d. "emergency situation" includes situations where a library or part of a library is required to be evacuated for security reasons or because of threat from fire or other hazard and practices and false alarms in relation thereto;
 - e. "last known address" means the last address held on the library authority's records:
 - f. "the library authority" means the Devon County Council...;
 - g. "library" means:
 - i) any premises which are occupied by a library authority and are premises where library facilities are made available by the authority, in the course of their provision of a public library service, to members of the public;
 - ii) any vehicle which is used by the library authority for the purpose of providing a public library service to members of the public and is a vehicle in which facilities are made available; and includes any part of such premises or vehicle;
 - h. "the library officer" means any officer employed by the library authority in connection with its functions under the Act;
 - "library property" includes property owned by or provided for the use of the library authority whether or not it is made available by the library authority for use by the public and property obtained by the library authority for the loan to or use of the public;
 - j. "the Regulations" means The Library Charges (England and Wales) Regulations 1991 S.I.1991/2712;
 - k. words importing the masculine gender include the feminine, words in the singular include the plural and words in the plural include the singular;
 - I. expressions used, unless the contrary intention appears, have the meaning which they bear in the Act and Regulations.
- 2. An act necessary for the proper execution of his duty by a library officer shall not be a contravention of these byelaws.

- 3. A person shall not supply an age, name, address or other means of identification which is false or misleading for the purpose of entering any part of the library premises or for the purpose of using any library facility.
- 4. No person who in the reasonable opinion of a library officer is offensively unclean in person or clothing or both shall remain in the library, after having been asked by a library officer to leave the library.
- 5. Except with the consent of a library officer, no person shall:
 - a. cause or allow any dog (other than an assistance dog) or other animal belonging to him or under his control to enter or remain in the library;
 - b. bring into any part of the library a wheeled vehicle or conveyance [other than those necessary for the assistance of people with limited mobility];
 - c. enter or remain in any part of the library which a reasonable person would or should know is prohibited to the public; or
 - d. access or remain in the library outside of the times fixed for its opening.
- 6. No person shall remain in the library after an emergency situation has been made known to him.
- 7. No person shall, unless specifically permitted by a library officer, take or attempt to take any library property from the library or past a check out or security point.
- 8. No person shall, without lawful excuse, destroy or damage any library property intending to destroy or damage such property or being reckless as to whether such property should be destroyed or damaged or act with intent or recklessness that such property should be destroyed or damaged.
- 9. No person shall behave in a violent, disorderly or indecent manner in the library, use violent, abusive, offensive, insulting or obscene language therein, or intentionally or recklessly cause or do anything likely to cause injury to any other person.
- 10. No person shall remain in a library without making proper use of the library's facilities after having been advised or requested, by a library officer, to make such proper use of the facilities.
- 11. No person shall intentionally or recklessly obstruct any library officer in the execution of his or her duty or intentionally or recklessly disturb, obstruct, interrupt, abuse or annoy any other person properly using the library.
- 12. No person shall, without the consent of a library officer, intentionally display, distribute, or leave any bill, placard, notice or other document on library premises.
- 13. No person shall, without the consent of a library officer, offer anything for sale or seek donations on library premises or canvass or seek signatures for petitions.
- 14. No person having charge of a child shall without the consent of a library officer leave him unsupervised in the library.
- 15. No person shall bring into or light any flame on library premises.
- 16. No person in any part of the library shall supply, take or be under the influence of alcohol or any toxic substance for the purpose of causing intoxication; or supply, take or be under the influence of any controlled drug as defined by Schedule 2 of the *Misuse of Drugs Act 1971* other than drugs dispensed for and pursuant to

- prescription issued for him by a doctor under and in accordance with the aforesaid Act
- 17. No person shall, except with the consent of a library officer, partake of refreshment in the library.
- 18. No person who
 - a) borrows library property which is returned late or if returned would be returned late, or
 - b) fails to pay any charge
 - shall, unless with the specific consent of a library officer, borrow any other library property.
- 19. Any person who has borrowed library property which if returned would be returned late and who has been served with a notice by the library authority demanding return of the library property shall return the library property or pay the appropriate replacement cost and charges [to a library provided by the library authority] within 14 days from the date the notice was served.
- 20. Any library user whose personal details change must notify a library officer as soon as reasonably possible or take responsibility for updating their own customer account.
- 21. A person shall use online resources in a way consistent with any Conditions of Use Policy or similar rules of the library, as advertised or notified by the authority. Breach of any such policy shall, without prejudice to any other legal sanction or remedy available to the library authority, lead to the barring of the use of such online resources.
- 22. No person shall take photographs or film any part of the library premises or persons within except with the consent of a library officer.
- 23. Any person who contravenes any of these byelaws shall, without prejudice to any other legal sanction or remedy, be liable to prosecution by the library authority for contravention of the byelaws, and shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale in respect of each offence.
- 24. A library officer may exclude any person who contravenes any of the foregoing byelaws from any library maintained by the library authority under the Act.
- 25. On the coming into operation of these byelaws, the byelaws relating to libraries which were made by Devon County Council on the fourth day of July 1990 and were confirmed by the Office for Arts and Sport on the sixth day of September 1990 shall be revoked.

[Official seal of local authority]

The Common Seal of [] was hereunto affixed in the presence of [].

The foregoing Byelaws are confirmed on behalf of the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport by the Deputy Director, Culture Directorate, Department for Culture, Media and Sport and shall come into force on [].

[Signature]
[Print Name]

[Date]

Deputy Director, Culture Directorate Department for Culture, Media and Sport

The date of coming into force is one month after date of signature.

The following is an optional note at the end of the Byelaws.

This note is not part of the byelaws.

Users of the library and library facilities are reminded that the provisions of the general law apply at all times. In particular as regards the activities referred to in byelaws 8 and 18 the library authority draws attention to the existence of the *Criminal Damage Act 1971* and the *Misuse of Drugs Act 1971*.

Something to this effect should also be displayed on or in the vicinity of the photocopy machines.

People who intend to make copies of works are advised that they may only do so in accordance with the provisions of the *Copyright Designs and Patents Act 1988* and are liable to prosecution under that Act if they fail to observe its provisions.